# THE INFLUENCE OF EMPLOYEE EMPOWERMENT ON EMPLOYEE COMMITMENT AMONG ACADEMIC STAFF AT JOMO KENYATTA UNIVERSITY OF AGRICULTURE AND TECHNOLOGY (JKUAT).

#### **RUTH WANGUI NJOROGE**

A RESEARCH PROJECT SUBMITTED IN PARTIAL FULFILLMENT OF THE REQUIREMENT FOR THE AWARD OF MASTERS OF SCIENCE DEGREE IN HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT BY THE UNIVERSITY OF NAIROBI.

# **DECLARATION**

I declare that this study is purel	y my work and has not been submitt	ed for any o	ther
examination in any institution for	academic purposes.		
Signed:	_Date:	-	
RUTH WANGUI NJOROGE			
D64/5432/2017			
This research project has been	submitted for examination with my	approval as	the
University Supervisor.			
Signed:	_Date:	-	
DR. FLORENCE MUINDI			
Senior Lecturer, Department of	<b>Business Administration</b>		
School of Business, University o	f Nairobi		

# **DEDICATION**

I dedicate this project to my family and friends who supported me throughout this process and contributed to its successful completion.

## **ACKNOWLEDGEMENT**

I am grateful to God for seeing me through my entire Masters Degree Course. I am grateful to The University of Nairobi for admitting me to their Msc. programme and the university Msc. teaching staff for upholding academic discipline. I wish to acknowledge my supervisor Dr. Florence K. Muindi for the guidance and constructive criticism which shaped this work. Finally I acknowledge my classmates and friends for their moral support which made the undertaking successful.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

DECLARATION	ii
DEDICATION	iii
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT	iv
LIST OF TABLES	viii
ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS	ix
ABSTRACT	X
CHAPTER ONE: INTRODUCTION	1
1.1 Background of the Study	1
1.1.1 Employee Empowerment	3
1.1.2 Employee Commitment	4
1.1.3 Academic Staff in Universities in Kenya	5
1.1.4 JKUAT	6
1.2 Research Problem	7
1.3 Objective of the Study	9
1.4 Value of the Study	9
CHAPTER TWO: LITERATURE REVIEW	11
2.1 Introduction	11
2.2 Theoretical Foundation	11
2.2.1 Social Exchange Theory	11
2.2.2 Kanter's Theory of Empowerment	12
2.3 Components of Employee Empowerment	
2.4 Dimensions of Employee Commitment	16
2.5 Employee Empowerment and Commitment	
CHAPTER THREE: RESEARCH METHODOLOGY	23
3.1 Introduction	23
3.2 Research Design	23
3.3 Population of the Study	23

3.4 Sample and Sampling Design	24
3.5 Data Collection	24
3.6 Data Analysis	25
CHAPTER FOUR: DATA ANALYSIS, RESULTS AND DISCUSSION	N26
4.1 Introduction	26
4.2 Respondents Demographics	26
4.2.1 Respondents Gender	26
4.2.2 Age of Respondents	27
4.2.3 Teaching Level	27
4.2.4 Working experience	28
4.3 Employee Empowerment	29
4.3.1 Perceived Support	30
4.3.2 Access to Information	31
4.3.3 Access to Resources	32
4.3.4 Access to Opportunity	33
4.4 Organizational Commitment	34
4.4.1 Affective Commitment	34
4.4.2 Continuance commitment	35
4.4.3 Normative Commitment	36
4.5 Regression Analysis	37
4.6 Discussion of Findings	40
CHAPTER FIVE: SUMMARY, CONCLUSION AND RECOMMEND	OATIONS42
5.1 Introduction	42
5.2 Summary of the Findings	42
5.3 Conclusion	44
5.4 Recommendations	45
5.5 Limitations of the Study	47
5.6 Suggestions for Further Research	48

REFERENCES		49
APPENDIX 1: RESEARCH	QUESTIONNAIRE	54

# LIST OF TABLES

Table 3. 1: Sample Size	24
Table 4. 1 Respondents Gender	26
Table 4. 2 Respondents Age	27
Table 4. 3 Teaching Level	28
Table 4. 4 Working Experience	29
Table 4. 5 Perceived Support	30
Table 4. 6 Access to Information	31
Table 4. 7 Access to Resources	32
Table 4. 8 Access to Opportunity	33
Table 4. 9 Affective Commitment	34
Table 4. 10 Continuance Commitment	35
Table 4. 11 Normative commitment	36
Table 4. 12: Model Summary	37
Table 4. 13 Analysis of Variance	38
Table 4. 14: Coefficients <sup>a</sup>	39

# ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS

**CBD** Central Business District

**JKUAT** Jomo Kenyatta University of Agriculture and Technology

**KNEC** Kenya National Examination Council

**KWS** Kenya Wildlife Service

**SAJOREC** Sino-Africa Joint Research Educational Centre

**SMARTEC** Sustainable Materials Research and Technology Centre

**TSC** Teachers Service Commission

#### **ABSTRACT**

Organizations in today's society have to be able to swiftly respond to the dynamism of the work environment dynamism in order to compete with their competitors within the same market. Employee empowerment is a great way to enhance this dynamism and its usefulness in attracting and retaining employees within an organization. This study thus aimed to determine the effects of employee empowerment on employee commitment among the academic staff in JKUAT. Specifically, the study aimed at determining the effect of perceived support, access to information, access to resources and access to opportunity on employee commitment. The study used a descriptive survey. The study's target population was members of the teaching staff in JKUAT. The study used stratified random sampling technique to arrive at the sample size. A questionnaire was used to collect the data by the researcher. Descriptive statistics were alo utilized to analyse the data. Frequency tables were used to present the data for easy comparison. The findings of this study concluded that employees at JKUAT are affectively committed to the organization meaning they hold the university to a high regard and it holds a personal meaning for them that is beyond any form of monetary compensation. The study also revealed that the employees are empowered by the organization through offering perceived support, offering access of information to them and also offering opportunities for career development and growth. However the employees felt that the resources offered to them were not adequate for the completion of their tasks. Moreover, it was deduced that there is a significant positive relationship that exists between employee empowerment and employee commitment as revealed by the findings. This means that empowering employees through offering them support, giving them access to information, giving them ample access to the required resources and giving them access to opportunity subsequently leads to an increase in commitment among the employees. In reference to the findings, it is recommended that the university should empower their employees to attain ample commitment from them.

#### **CHAPTER ONE: INTRODUCTION**

## 1.1Background of the Study

Workplace empowerment is a relatively new management intervention that has emerged over the recent years. It is basically the way in which members of staff in an organization can make their own decisions regarding their work without the need to consult with their bosses (Kumar, 2014). According to Grimsley (2018), empowerment is giving employees a certain degree of independence, decision making and autonomy regarding their jobs in an organization. Where there is employee empowerment, decisions do not have to be made at the top most levels of the organization, they can be made at the lower levels. Employee empowerment entails allowing employees to take ownership of the goals set for them to achieve by the organization and this inevitably makes employees more committed to their places of employment. When the employees in an organization are committed to the organization, they become more creative and innovative, their productivity levels go up, and they do above and beyond what is expected of them. The probability of a highly committed employee leaving the organization is significantly less due to the psychological attachment that is brought about by commitment.

Theories informing this study include the Kanter's theory of empowerment and the social exchange theory. According to Kanter (1993), empowerment is whereby an individual makes decisions independently. The theory posits that empowerment leads employees to be committed to their work and disempowerment among employees has a negative impact on them and their commitment to their work. Kanter goes on to say than any

organization that is centered on empowerment gives its employees autonomy to plan their own tasks and carry them out without needing to go through the supervisor. The second theory that will be discussed in relation to the study is the social exchange theory. The social exchange theory (Homans, 1950) posits that employees will remain with an organization and put their best foot forward within that organization if the organization shows that it values that employee by shaping their career accordingly. This theory states that people analyse their social relationships according to the risks versus the benefits that these relationships present. If the risks are more than the benefits within the relationship, it inevitably comes to a standstill.

This study will focus on JKUAT because it is a major employer of teaching staff in Kenya. This university is very significant and it makes a great impact in the Kenyan education system. Despite JKUAT having all these programs to offer and it being one of the oldest universities in Kenya, there is a level of mediocrity and demoralization exhibited among the teaching staff members. This is perfectly exhibited by the lecturers' strikes that have been occurring in our country over the last few years. There is an observed lack of commitment among the lecturers and they seem to be performing their duties almost robotically, that is lacking passion and a sense of drive. Evidently, the teaching staff at the university do not have enough resources to carry out their daily tasks, which in turn affects the quality of education passed down to their students. There are also minimal opportunities for promotions and there isn't much observable cohesion among the members of teaching staff all of which stem from lack of employee empowerment. Therefore, the motive behind this study is to investigate the effect of employee empowerment on employee commitment among the academic staff in JKUAT.

## 1.1.1 Employee Empowerment

According to Raquib (2010), employee empowerment is a situation whereby employees are allowed to fully own and be in control of their tasks. In an organization where employees are empowered, responsibilities that are traditionally considered to be managerial are passed down to the employees (Saleh, 2013). The decisions these employees are empowered to make can either be minor decisions or major organizational altering decisions depending on the extent to which the company has empowered their people. In some cases, employee empowerment actually involves training the employee to be able to make the decisions (Ramesh, 2014). Empowered employees have been proven to be more hardworking and motivated than employees who are disempowered. These employees are highly satisfied and this automatically translates to the customers because they treat them more respectfully.

Lockwood (2007) suggested that empowerment of employees is a multi faceted concept and that it can either be structural or psychological. Psychological empowerment focuses on the thought process of the employees within organizations and how these same employees view the roles they are meant to carry out within their given jobs. Structural empowerment has to do with enabling employees to access information, support, resources and opportunities and utilize these things in order to achieve ones objectives (Kanter, 1993). According to Menon (2001), empowerment enables employees within an organization to think and therefore behave in an autonomous way. According to, Kirkman et al. (2007), employee empowerment practices led to increased productivity among employees, superior customer service, job satisfaction and overall commitment to the organization.

# 1.1.2 Employee Commitment

According to Hanaysha (2016), employee commitment is the factors that keep an employee glued to their organization without exploring other options and these reasons are more or less psychological. According to Hall et al. (1970), commitment is situation whereby the individual objectives of the employee and the general organizational objectives are aligned and integrated into one and the same thing. Dordevic (2004) posited that an employee's performance at work, his productivity and even how often he misses work, both physical and mental absenteeism can be predicted by the employee's organizational allegiance. Decotii (1987) posited that disloyal employees to their organization give their organization a bad reputation on the outside and may actually affect the organizations ability to recruit high quality employees. On the other hand Meyer (1997) found that committed employees put in more effort towards their given tasks and thus these employees will exhibit high levels of performance.

There are three different types of commitment that are broadly recognized. These are affective, continuance and normative commitment. An affectively committed employee actually wants to remain within that organization. This kind of employee not only fully embraces the organizational goals and objectively, he also fits in with the organization (Meyer, 1997). Employees that are normatively committed on the other hand feel that they should stay within their organizations because they presume that leaving said organizations would be disastrous for various reasons. Continuance commitment is where employees stay with their current organizations because they feel that they need to. Committed employees add value to an organization and are hardly ever absent for no reason and they hardly move to other competing organizations (fles, 1990). Employee

commitment within an organization produces a myriad of favourable outcomes like employee retention, attendance of work on a daily basis, good work quality, helping an organization attain its top most goals sacrificially and significant achievement by the employee (Randal, 1990).

## 1.1.3 Academic Staff in Universities in Kenya

According to the online dictionary, an academic staff is one who has been employed in a university to either teach, carry out research or both. The academic staff in universities consists of professors of various ranks, lecturers and researchers. Most universities staff members hold a Ph.D. or an equivalent high level degree in their field. The total academic staff in Kenya as a whole is said to be 16,318 with 74% in public universities while 26% in private universities. Of these, only 5604 academic staff had a PhD qualification which is only 34% of the total academic staff. Academic staff in Kenyan universities are categorized into 5 levels which are professors, senior lecturers, lecturers, assistant lecturers and graduate assistants (Okoth, 2007).

In order to qualify to be either an associate or a full professor in the university circles, one must have a PhD or a qualification that is considered the equivalent of this. In order to attain the rank of a full professor across Kenyan universities, one should have been an associate professor for at least four years and should have at least three publications that have been scrutinized by their colleagues in international journals. However, there are some academic staff that may not have attained their PhDs for some reason who are also called professors by their peers or even their students. The promotion of staff from one level to another in Kenya is highly political and a qualified member of staff may have

met the requirements needed to attain the position, but may have not yet received a promotion (Kiboye, 2007).

## 1.1.4 Jomo Kenyatta University of Agriculture and Technology

Jomo Kenyatta University of Agriculture and Technology is an educational institution located in Kiambu County, Juja. It is situated along the Nairobi Thika Superhighway. It initially started off as a college after the then president donated land to the university for expansion so that they could become a fully fledged university. In 1988 however JKCAT turned to JKUAT under the declaration of the President Daniel Arap Moi. It Admitted its first degree students in 1989 and later on became an autonomous, stand alone university. JKUAT offers various programs in different fields like Architecture, Science, Engineering, Technology and Building Sciences. Its motto as an institution of higher learning reveals that they want to be trend setters in the areas of innovation, research and the higher education sector at large (JKUAT, 2018).

JKUAT is made up of several schools and faculties and it offers courses of all ranges and diversities from science courses, law, business courses and engineering. JKUAT is best known for its engineering courses around the country and its electrical engineering course especially is very competitive. Only the highest performers in the country get into this course. It also offers E- learning or distance learning to students who cannot physically access the different campuses. JKUAT also has campuses and centers all over the country. It has a campus in Kisii, Kitale, Kakamega, Mombasa, Nakuru, Nairobi (CBD), Arusha, Kigali Westlands and Karen. It also aspires to encourage teamwork among the members of staff, promote transparency with the members of staff within the organization and also seeks to maintain a high level of integrity when dealing with its

customers and its employees alike. The university has a total of 817 staff members which constitute 51 professors, 76 assistant professors, 93 senior lecturers, 322 lecturers and 275 tutorial fellows (JKUAT, 2018).

#### 1.2 Research Problem

Most researchers who have studied employee commitment and employee empowerment seem to all agree on the conclusion. According to Kanter (1997), the organizations that attract and keep the crème de la crème employees of any given society irrespective of the economical state of the area and the challenging economic times ensure that they include their employees in the decision making process. These employees were also seen to have more autonomy over their jobs. Janssen (2004) and Kahlel (2005) both carried out studies that revealed the strength of the relationship between employee empowerment and employee commitment. Empowerment makes the employees of a given organization feel valued by their employer and thus increasing their commitment levels and subsequently their performance (Sahoo, 2010).

Universities are very important in today's society as they contribute to the economic and social development of the Kenyan society. However these universities are facing difficult challenges, some of which include an increased number of student admissions, under staffing, inadequate funding, and low research output and so on. According to Too (2016), qualified employees are choosing to go to teach in other countries that offer better working conditions than those found in Kenya. Lecturers in the country seem to be dissatisfied with their working conditions due to the numerous strikes that they seem to be going on. This shows a general lack of commitment to their jobs. Although their

grievances are mainly due to remuneration, one would state that a lack of adequate empowerment would be one of their main woes. The seeming lack of commitment by the academic staff to their jobs ignited a level of curiosity that ignited the premise of this study.

A plethora of studies have been carried out in relation to employee empowerment and commitment both in Kenya and internationally in other parts of the world. A study was carried out by Imuezerua et al. (2016) and they investigated how job satisfaction among employees could be influenced by employee empowerment, support by the organization, climate and commitment by the top management. They studied organizations in South Africa and came to the conclusion that job satisfaction among employees is largely influenced by employee commitment. There was another study done by Elnaga et al. (2014) still on how job satisfaction is impacted by the empowerment of employees. This study was based in Pakistan and the findings were similar to those of the previous study. They revealed that job satisfaction was highly dependent on the level of employee empowerment. One local study was conducted by Kirui (2011) and it focused on the influence of employee empowerment on implementation of ISO standards in the University of Nairobi. This study concluded that indeed employee empowerment positively impacted the ISO standards at the university and it deduced that empowerment is important for the operational staff. Another study was carried out by Kariuki and Kiambati (2017) from Karatina University and it was focusing on empowerment, organizational commitment, organizational citizenship behaviour and firm commitment. They targeted a manufacturing firm in Kenya and came to the conclusion that empowerment significantly predicts firm performance. This study however focused on a manufacturing company which is significantly different from an educational institution and it also focused on the performance aspect and not on employee commitment. Another study by Ng'ang'a and Moronge (2017) and it looked into the Kenya Wildlife Service and how employees' performance was interconnected with empowerment. The findings of the study revealed employee performance at KWS was influenced by the structural empowerment of the employees. This study however focused on performance as a variable and not commitment. None of these studies however focused on how employee commitment is impacted by empowerment among academic staff in universities, specifically JKUAT. Thus this study sought to answer the question; how does employee empowerment affect employee commitment among academic staff in JKUAT?

# 1.3 Objective of the Study

The objective of this study was to determine the influence of employee empowerment on employee commitment among academic staff in JKUAT.

# 1.4Value of the Study

This study will have a plethora of beneficiaries. JKUAT will benefit from this study because it will discover ways on how to increase employee commitment among the academic staff. On top of that, other public universities around the country can benefit from this study because the results will be applicable to all the universities that have similar circumstances to JKUAT.

This study will help in policy development in these institutions of higher learning and the policy makers may find the results beneficial while reviewing university policies. The policy makers are able to get fundamental information on the reasons why employees

stay committed to an organization and also why these same employees may leave an organization that they feel does not empower them.

This study will also be of exponential value to fellow academicians and scholars as it will create knowledge on employee empowerment and how it influences employee commitment. Scholars may find the study conclusions quite intriguing and use them to carry out their own studies. The results of this study will act as literature to inform future research and will act as future secondary data for research on this topic.

#### **CHAPTER TWO: LITERATURE REVIEW**

#### 2.1 Introduction

This chapter entails the theoretical review as well as other empirical studies that have been done on the area of employee empowerment and employee commitment. It starts with the theoretical foundation of the study followed by literature on employee empowerment and commitment.

#### 2.2 Theoretical Foundation

The two theories informing this survey are the social exchange theory and Kanter's theory of empowerment in relation to employee empowerment and employee commitment.

## **2.2.1 Social Exchange Theory**

As maintained by Homans (1950), the social exchange theory posits that people generally try to attain things from others that are of a higher value to them than the costs that they incur. People like feeling that they are getting more out of an exchange than they have to give up or forfeit. George Homans (1950) drew from different sociologists, theorists and fields while putting together some of his thoughts on social exchange. One of the people he drew from was Foote (1943) who studied Italian Immigrant gangs. Homans noted from this study that the Italians believed in equivalent exchanges as a sign of true friendship. If one person did not return the favours accorded to them, this person would not receive a favour from the person any time in the future.

The social exchange theory suggests that people constantly compare what they gave in a relationship and what they received from that same relationship current relationship with the same from a past relationship. People use this comparison element to assess how satisfied they are within their current relationship. People also evaluate the stability of their relationship by evaluating their alternatives outside the relationship. The person then carries out a cost benefit analysis to determine if they are in the correct relationship (Thibaut, 1969). A good example would be in an employment relationship where one might compare their current job to their previous job and expect the same level of benefits and satisfaction, if not more. However ones current job might not measure up, leading the person to seek alternatives elsewhere. The social exchange theory in itself has several elements that are relevant to this study. These elements are: Rewards, Social rewards, Costs, Profit, Equity and Social exchange.

Cost is defined as something which is of value that is given up or the withdrawal of a reward or punishment. Blau (1964) said that our choice to nurture one particular relationship automatically cancels out our ability to invest in another relationship that could potentially be of infinitely higher value. Levine (2010) posited that the most fulfilling relationships are those whereby the rewards one attains from being in the relationship outweigh the costs that one has to incur while investing in the relationship. Within relationships for instance, people seek out partners who will equal their costs and rewards.

# 2.2.2 Kanter's Theory of Empowerment

On the authority of Kanter (1993), power is defined as the "ability to mobilize resources to get things done". Within any given organization, power can come from either formal

or informal sources. Informal power emerges from the positive relationship that an employee has with his superiors, his peers and his subordinates. In an organization, the job positions that are highly visible and are vital for the fulfillment of the organizational goals are considered to be high in formal power. According to Wong (2011), an empowered employee has ample support available to him, he has access to relevant and timely information from the organization, organizational resources are easily available to him and the employee has opportunities to learn and grow. Kanter posits that if an organization is structured to give its employees ample empowerment, this structure will lead its employees to be more committed to their work. In an organization that is empowered, there will be increased autonomy, job satisfaction and ultimately commitment to this organization. Burn out and stress levels will also be drastically reduced in such an organization.

Kanter came up with four dimensions or aspects that are needed for empowerment of employees and these are perceived support, access to information, access to resources and finally the access to opportunities (Vacharakiat, 2008). Employees have been found to be more committed to their jobs if their employers provide these fours aspects of employee empowerment. Access to information has to do with the data, technical comprehension and expertise that are needed so as to perform ones job proficiently. Access to resources is whereby an employee can get their hands on vital resources that are important for the continuity of their tasks like cash, work supplies miscellaneous materials and even access to other employees who are vital for the achievement of organizational goals (Krishna, 2007). Access to support on the other hand has to do with feedback either from superiors or colleagues, guidance and direction that is provided by supervisors, peers and also

subordinates (Kanter, 1993). According to Kanter, employers in every organization should ensure that they provide support to their employees, they give relevant and timely information to their employees, they give adequate resources to them for continuity of their tasks and they give their employees opportunities for promotion and growth. Kanter's theory focuses on the way the employees view their actual working conditions and not on how the employee interprets the information on these conditions psychologically. One of the weaknesses of Kanter's theory of empowerment is adaptability. There isn't much information or knowledge out there on whether this theory can apply to different cultural contexts.

## 2.3 Components of Employee Empowerment

Today, many organizations are looking for an edge that will allow them to be the top performers in any given business environment and to gain market share. This is usually done by improving employee productivity. The best way to increase employee productivity is to in today modern world is to empower employees. This philosophy is based on the premise that when an employee is empowered to make his own decisions in the work environment, he becomes more confident in himself, more capable, and determined to work more effectively and efficiently.

In his theory, Kanter (1993) established several components of employee empowerment. The first component is perceived support. The support addressed can either be material support or psychosocial support. Material support is whereby the employee is provided with the tools and equipment he needs to carry out his tasks. Financial resources also fall under material support. Psychosocial support on the other hand is given by the employee's manager in the form of advice, and not necessarily tangible materials.

Support by an employee's supervisor is extremely important to the employee and also to the organization. There is a lot of evidence from previous research that shows that when an employee feels that he receives support from his supervisor, his peers and also his subordinates, then the employee becomes more committed to the organization. Thus, support should emerge from all facets of the organization (Burke et al., 2010).

Access to opportunity has to do with the access of opportunity to grow and move up the organizational hierarchy (Kanter, 1993). It entails employee's advancements in their careers, the opportunity for employees to learn more within their jobs and increase their knowledge, and also the opportunity to be rewarded for good job performance (Voyra et al., 2013). In addition to that, opportunity also involves receiving training, having ones career develop consistently throughout the year and having significant autonomy over ones job and tasks. When it comes to training, organizations should make strategies that ensure its employees are constantly undergoing retraining and continuous learning. This helps to curb the aspect of obsolescence and maintain the careers of employees. All these aspects of access to opportunity lead to reduced employee turnover within the organization and also the rate of absenteeism among the employees and thus employee commitment is increased.

Access to information in the context of an organization has to do with knowing ones objectives and goals within their position, knowing the decisions made by the organization on varied areas like change in policies and knowing the objectives of the organization (Kanter, 1993). Having access to information provides the employee with a sense of power (Xiaohui, 2007). Organizational efficiency can also increase due to having access to information because people with access to information can spread the

information to their colleagues or subordinates and hence the organization thrives (Kanter, 1993). For an employee to have access to vital information, the organization ought to encourage employee participation in decision making. An employee that has adequate access to information has both formal and informal knowledge that is vital for organizational efficiency.

According to Vacharakiat (2008), the most important and vital component of empowerment is access to resources. Access to resources is being able to reach the required material resources to carry out a given task. These material resources could be supplies, human resources, equipment, money, time and so on (Jons, 2005). According to Kanter (1993), the access of resources ought not to be available to the top level management as is the norm in most organizations but instead it should be decentralized and made accessible to the lower level employees within the organization to be able to have access to. This is vital for employees to be able to efficiently and effectively carry out their jobs and tasks. Employees within organizations get very frustrated when they are expected to carry out certain vital tasks but they have no access to the necessary resources. This aspect can definitely reduce employee commitment to an organization.

# 2.4 Dimensions of Employee Commitment

According to Park and Rainey (2007), organizational commitment is how different individuals within the same organization have varied loyalties to said organization. Carriere and Borque (2009) also posited that commitment connects individuals almost definitely to an action course that is relevant to the organization. Today, there is no organization that can be a high flyer or high performer unless the employees within the organizations are committed to the organizations goals and objectives and each employee

works as an efficient member of a team (Coetzee, 2005). Substantial research has revealed that indeed, employee commitment can be increased within an organization. Certain initiatives have been shown to lead to increased levels of employee commitment. These factors include having clear guidelines that define appropriate work behaviour, having efficient and effective communication with ones immediate supervisor and even senior level management and having clearly defined career paths.

According to Meyer and Allen (1997), organizational commitment can be divided into three dimensions. The three dimensions are affective commitment, continuance commitment and normative commitment. Affective commitment, also known as affection for your job occurs when one feels a great emotional attachment to their jobs. On top of that, an employee that has affective commitment is more likely to help his fellow colleagues, work extra hours and share any crucial information. Solinger et al. (2008) posited that the presence of affective commitment within employees leads to reduced absenteeism, increased employee performance and adequate organizational citizenship behaviours more than both continuance and normative commitment. Moreover, affective commitment has been found to mitigate stress levels among employees and diminish feelings of exhaustion and burnout according to various researchers (Schmidt, 2015). According to Mowday et al. (1982) highly committed employees to their organization put in additional effort in order to ensure that they meet the organizations goals.

Secondly, we have the continuance commitment which is also known as fear of loss. An employee with continuance commitment may feel the need to stay in a given company after he has weighed the pros and cons of leaving and has established that staying would be the best option for him. One may fear losing money, their seniority or even their work

friends. Shore et al. (1995) studied the concept of continuance commitment and he found levels of continuance commitment among well educated employees are significantly less than their lower educated counterparts. This is because people who are highly educated have more options when it comes to deciding which employer to work for and also have a larger pool of jobs to select from. On top of that, according to Harris et al. (2001) the employees who work in managerial positions tend to own their tasks more than their subordinates. Because of this, employees who are higher up in the job hierarchy exhibit more continuance commitment than those who are lower in the hierarchy.

The third type of commitment is the normative commitment. This one usually occurs when an employee feels obligated to stay with an organization, even though they may not be happy in that organization (Meyer, 1997). Normatively committed employees often feel hesitant to leave their current work places as they feel that the move would have disastrous consequences for their organization. Employees may feel that if they leave the organization, this will create a gap or a void in knowledge and skills which would then lead to increased work pressure on their colleagues (Werf, 2016). According to research carried out by various scholars affective commitment and normative commitment are quite parallel and seem to go hand in hand. However, this is not to say that normative commitment and affective commitment are one and the same thing. There are some significant differences between normative commitment and affective commitment, for instance normative commitment, unlike the other two dimensions of commitment has a positive relationship with socialization and also engagement according to Meyer (1997).

## 2.5 Employee Empowerment and Commitment

Several studies have been done on employee empowerment both locally and internationally. Hanasha (2016) carried out a study that looked into the manner in which organizational commitment is impacted by empowerment, training and teamwork. His study focused on the Malaysian education sector and its objective was to figure out how employee empowerment, team work and employee training affect employee commitment. The administrative and the academic staff within the public universities were the researcher's target population. This study revealed that organizational commitment is positively impacted by the empowerment of employees. Empowering employees makes them feel valued by the organization which in turn leads to employees being more committed to the organization and also improves the performance of the employees (Sahoo et al., 2010).

Ramos and Ales (2014) also carried out a study investigating how job satisfaction is affected by employee empowerment among university employees. The sample was drawn from a Spanish University and it was made up of 226 university teachers. The study analysed various facets of empowerment like opportunity, formal power given to the employee, access to resources by the employee, access to information and intrinsic satisfaction. These findings were congruent with Kanter's theory of empowerment (Kanter, 1993). The study revealed that structural empowerment and the levels of job satisfaction are interconnected. Also, according to the study it was revealed that the satisfaction with ones job and employee commitment are interlinked. The study suggested that access to opportunity and the feeling of autonomy among employees leads to increased levels of intrinsic job satisfaction.

Another study was carried out by Maina (2017) who was a PhD student at Jomo Kenyatta University. Her study was on how employee empowerment has influenced organizational commitment among workers in the Kenya Civil Service. She found that organizational commitment was significantly impacted by the psychological empowerment provided by the organization. The dimensions of psychological empowerment, which are cognition, competitive cognition and self-determination, exhibited a positive relationship with organizational commitment. The study went on to show that organizations will exhibit organizational commitment to a large extent if the employees have autonomy of work, if they find deep set meaning in their work and if they have confidence in their own skills and capabilities.

Mutiso (2017) also investigated the job satisfaction levels at Machakos level five Hospital in Kenya and how employee empowerment has influenced these levels. He used both structured and unstructured questionnaires to collect his data. The findings of his study was that empowering employees through various means like using training, through the provision of proper tools and equipment, and also involving this employees in decision making that affects them was very crucial in increasing the levels of performance and job satisfaction. In this hospital there was little to no empowerment with regards to the measurement factors that he used to determine empowerment and he recommended ways in which the hospital could empowerment could be carried out so as to improve motivation and employee satisfaction.

Bakari (2008) also decided to execute an empirical study on how employee empowerment and employee performance are interrelated at the City Council of Nairobi. He analysed his data and forged several conclusions from his findings. Tsala measured

whether the respondents have mastered the skills that are necessary for their jobs, whether the respondents had any kind of control over the aspects of the job that they are accountable and whether their work gave them the ability add on to the organization's success. He also measured whether the employees had significant opportunity for freedom and independence in doing their jobs and whether they get sufficient resources to do their jobs. The study concluded that the performance of the employees at the city council improved when employees became more empowered. Thus employee performance and employee empowerment are strongly correlated according to this study.

Moreover, Chinomona and Imuezerua (2016), two South Africa Based scholars carried out a similar empirical study as well. They targeted organizations within the province of Guateng to gather their information from. His study actually utilized secondary data to gather information on how employee satisfaction is influenced by employee empowerment, among other variables that his study targeted. The conclusions of this study were as expected and were just like the conclusions of most of the other empirical studies. The study revealed that employee satisfaction increased significantly when the employees in these registered companies were empowered by their employers.

Finally, Kimolo (2013) carried out a study at the Regional Development Authorities in Kenya. he looked into how employee empowerment and employee performance in this organization are correlated. The target population was all the employees of six regional development authorities whose total population was 1732 people, however only 173 employees were given the questionnaires. The employee empowerment practices that were measured by the study were training, communication with supervisors, teamwork among the staff, participation of employees in organizational goal setting and the

delegation of authority among others. He concluded that to some extent, employee empowerment practices determine employee performance; however the organization only moderately embraced employee empowerment.

#### **CHAPTER THREE: RESEARCH METHODOLOGY**

#### 3.1 Introduction

This chapter highlights the process through which data was collected, analyzed as well as interpreted with respect to the research carried out. It shows the methods of data collection instruments, the research design and the techniques that were used to analyze the data.

## 3.2 Research Design

This study used a descriptive research design. A descriptive study design describes the participants who are taking part in a given study. It is used to depict these participants in an accurate manner. A descriptive study will always answer the questions who, what and how. Since this study sought to establish the relationship between employee empowerment and commitment at Jomo Kenyatta University of Agriculture and Technology, a descriptive survey design was the most appropriate design to fulfill this study's objectives.

# 3.3 Population of the Study

This study focused on the teaching staff members in JKUAT. This study targeted the teaching staff members in JKUAT who are 817 in total. These do not include the teaching assistants as the teaching assistant's position is merely a training position and the people employed under this position are merely former students who attained a first class honors. This information was attained from the head of human resource management at JKUAT.

# 3.4 Sample and Sampling Design

The study used stratified Sampling to collect data for this study. The teaching staff can be divided into different strata according to the different levels. From the total population of 817 employees, a sample was taken. 10% of the population is adequate to attain a representative sample. However the sample of this study was a total of 162 people which is 20% of the total population. Table 3.1 shows the proportionate stratified sample.

Table 3. 1: Sample Size

Category of employee	Frequency	<b>Proportion</b> sample	Sample
		%	
Professor/ Assistant	127	20%	25
Professor			
Senior Lecturer	93	20%	18
Lecturer	322	20%	64
Tutorial Fellow/ Assistant	275	20%	55
Lecturer			
Total	817	20%	162

#### 3.5 Data Collection

A questionnaire was used for primary data collection and it was divided into three parts. The first part constituted of the general information of the respondents, while the second part of the questionnaire was on employee empowerment and finally the third part of the questionnaire was on employee commitment. The questionnaire was made up solely of closed ended questions in order to provide more structured responses and to generally come up with more tangible results.

## 3.6 Data Analysis

The data collected in this study was coded and logged in the computer using Statistical Package for Social Science (SPSS). The quantitative data was coded into various categories like percentages and frequencies. There was also the use of descriptive statistics which was basically the use of dispersion which is mean and standard deviation. The data was also presented in form of tables and for easy comparison. Regression analysis was done to establish the effect of employee empowerment on employee commitment. Afterwards, tables were used to present the results of the study so as to make the data easier to comprehend, as well as the making of recommendations.

The following model for the regression model was used to analyse the relationship:

$$Y = \beta_0 + \beta_1 X_1 + \beta_2 X_2 + \beta_3 X_3 + \beta_4 X_4 + \sum_{i=1}^{n} \beta_i X_i + \beta_2 X_2 + \beta_3 X_3 + \beta_4 X_4 + \sum_{i=1}^{n} \beta_i X_i + \beta_2 X_2 + \beta_3 X_3 + \beta_4 X_4 + \sum_{i=1}^{n} \beta_i X_i + \beta_4 X_i + \beta_5 X_i$$

Whereby;

Y= employee commitment at JKUAT

 $X_1$  = perceived support

 $X_2$  = Access of information

 $X_3 = Access to resources$ 

 $X_4 = Access to opportunity$ 

β0= Intercept of the regression model

 $\beta_1$ -  $\beta_4$ =Coefficients of the regression model

 $\Sigma$ = Error term

## CHAPTER FOUR: DATA ANALYSIS, RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

#### 4.1 Introduction

This chapter presents data analysis, results and discussion of the findings. The objective of this study was to find out the influence of employee empowerment on employee commitment among academic staff in JKUAT. The survey targeted 163 respondents and 130 responded which brought the response rate to 79.75%.

# **4.2 Respondents Demographics**

This study embarked of finding out the gender of the respondents, the age bracket within which the respondents fall, the academic level within which they belong, the faculty of college they work in and how many years they have worked for the university.

# 4.2.1 Respondents Gender

**Table 4. 1 Respondents Gender** 

	Frequency	Percentage
Male	108	83.1
Female	22	16.9
Total	130	100

Source: Research Data (2018)

The study embarked on finding out the gender of the respondents. As seen in table 4.1, 83.1% of the respondents were male while 16.9% of the respondents were female. This shows that there are far more male workers in the university than female workers. The disparity in gender is brought about by the nature of the courses offered in the university. A majority of the lecturers at JKUAT are male because the university offers

predominantly science courses that were traditionally pursued mostly by males. This boils down also to the lecturers who teach these courses.

## 4.2.2 Age of Respondents

According to table 4.2, 35.4 % of the respondents were aged between the ages of 38 to 47 years old. 23% of the respondents were aged between 30 to 38 years of age, 16.9% were aged between 57 to 65 years, 15.4% were aged between 48 to 56 years, 7.7% were aged above 65 years old and 1.5% of the respondents were aged below 30 years. From these findings we get to see that most of the respondents were in their prime working years which are between the ages of 38 to 47 years. That is the age when most people have already finished pursuing their PhDs and have started rising in the ranks of academia.

Table 4. 2 Respondents Age

Years	Frequency	Percentage
Below 30 years	2	1.5
30 to 38 years	30	23.0
38 to 47 years	46	35.4
48 to 56 years	20	15.4
57 to 65 years	22	16.9
Above 65 years	10	7.7
Total	130	100

Source: Research Data (2018)

## **4.2.3** Teaching Level

Table 4.3 below shows where the respondents lie in regards to the teaching levels attained. According to the findings, 39.7% of the respondents were lecturers, tutorial

fellows also referred to as teaching assistants were 27%, 20.6% of the respondents were professors and finally the senior lecturers were 12.7%. 4 people did not input their teaching levels in their most of the employees at JKUAT are lecturers and there is room for promotions and career development.

**Table 4. 3 Teaching Level** 

<b>Teaching Level</b>	Frequency	Percentage
Professor	26	20.6
Senior lecturer	16	12.7
Lecturer	50	39.7
Tutorial fellow/ Assistant	34	27.0
Lecturer		
Total	126	100

Source: Research Data (2018)

## 4.2.4 Working experience

Table 4.4 below indicates exactly how long individuals have worked in the university. 33% of the respondents have worked in the university for more than 20 years, 23.3 % have worked in the university between 5 to 10 years, 21.9% have worked in the university between 10 to 15 years, 14% of the respondents have worked in the university for 15 to 20 years and 7.8% have worked in the university between 1-5 years. From these finding it can be found that the members of academic staff who responded have been in the organization long enough to be able to give credible responses regarding employee empowerment and commitment.

**Table 4. 4 Working Experience** 

Years	Frequency	Percentage
1-5 years	10	7.8
5-10 years	30	23.3
10-15 years	28	21.9
15-20 years	18	14.0
More than 20 years	42	33.0
Total	128	100

Source: Research Data (2018)

# **4.3** Employee Empowerment

The objective of the study was to determine the influence of employee empowerment on employee commitment among academic staff in JKUAT. The statements in the questionnaire had to do with employee empowerment within the university. The respondents were asked to rate various aspects of employee empowerment on a scale of 1 to 5 where 1=strongly disagree 2=disagree 3=neutral 4=agree and 5=strongly agree. The findings are presented using a mean scale of 1-5. A mean of greater than 1 and less than 1.5 implied very little or no employee empowerment, mean greater than 1.5 and less than 2.5 implies disagree, a mean greater than 2.5 and less than 3.5 implies neutral, a mean greater than 3.5 and less than 4.5 implied agree and a mean greater than 4.5 implies strongly agree. Standard deviation is used to give a description of the distribution of the mean.

# **4.3.1 Perceived Support**

The respondents were asked to indicate whether they felt that the university offers them adequate support when carrying out their work duties. This was done to establish the role of support in increasing employee empowerment.

**Table 4. 5 Perceived Support** 

Statements	Mean	Std. Deviation
My achievements and successes are recognized	3.35	1.06
by the university		
My coworkers value my contribution and care	3.71	0.79
about my well being		
My supervisor is willing to re arrange my work	3.48	1.04
days so as to increase my effectiveness on and off		
the job		
Average on perceived support	3.69	0.96

Source: Research Data (2018)

The respondents as shown in table 4.6 above agreed that their co workers value their contribution and care about their well being as shown by a mean of 3.71. The average on perceived support was 3.69 with a standard deviation of 0.96. This indicated that the respondents agreed that indeed perceived support enhances employee commitment to the organization within the university and there was a consensus among the respondents as show by the standard deviation. The respondents were neutral that their supervisors were willing to re arrange their working days so as to increase their effectiveness on and off the job as shown by a mean of 3.48. The respondents were neutral on the fact that their achievements and successes are recognized by the university as shown by a mean of 3.35.

The respondents of this study therefore agreed that the university offers support to its academic staff as a way of empowering them. The above analysis implies that the academic staff at JKUAT value the work of their peers. However the recognition by the university and the job flexibility were somewhat not adequate.

## **4.3.2** Access to Information

**Table 4. 6 Access to Information** 

Statements	Mean	Std. Deviation
I am always informed of what is going on in the university	3.31	1.14
I know what I should do, how I should do it and why I	4.07	1.07
should do it in line with the university's goals		
The information I receive is relevant and timely	3.49	0.99
Average on access to information	3.62	1.07

Source: Research Data (2018)

According to table 4.6, the respondents agreed that they know what they should do, how they should do it and why they should do it in line with the university's goals as shown by a mean of 4.07. They agreed that they receive relevant and timely information from the university as shown by a mean of 3.49. Finally, they were neutral on the fact that they are always informed of what is going on in the university as shown by a mean of 3.31. The grand mean was 3.62 with a standard deviation of 1.07. This shows that the respondents agreed that indeed access to information within the university led to an increase in employee commitment. However, some employees do not feel like the university informs them adequately of what goes on within the organization. Also some employees also feel like the information they receive is not always relevant nor is it timely. From this we can deduce that the university provides relevant and timely

information to its employees and it also informs the employees of the organizational objectives and goals. Thus the employees have role clarity.

#### 4.3.3 Access to Resources

The study sought to establish some aspects of access to resources that influences employee commitment. The outcome is as depicted in table 4.7 below.

**Table 4. 7 Access to Resources** 

Statements	Mean	Std. Deviation
I normally get sufficient resources to do my job	2.44	1.02
I am given ample time by the organization to accomplish my	3.28	1.13
tasks		
I have influence to bring in the materials I need to carry out my job	2.91	1.09
Average on access to resources	2.88	1.08

Source: Research Data (2018)

According to table 4.7 the respondents were neutral that they are given ample time by the organization to accomplish their tasks as shown by a mean of 3.28 and they were also neutral that they have influence to bring in the materials they need to carry out their job as shown by the mean of 2.91. The respondents disagree with the statement that they get sufficient resources to do their job as shown by a mean of 2.44. 2.88 was the average mean with a standard deviation of 1.08. This implied that the respondents were neutral with regards to whether or not they have access to resources. It also insinuates that the academic staff at JKUAT are also not satisfied with the time given by the university to complete their tasks. Also the university does not adequately allow the staff to acquire the

materials they need to carry out their jobs. The JKUAT academic staff thus feel that they do not have enough access to the resources that they need to carry out their jobs properly.

# 4.3.4 Access to Opportunity

The study sought to establish some aspects of access to opportunity that enhanced employee commitment.

**Table 4.8: Access to Opportunity** 

Statements	Mean	Std.
		Deviation
My position allows for career growth and development	3.94	1.03
I have a chance to grow and be promoted within the university	3.82	0.92
My job offers me opportunities to participate in interesting projects and opportunities for increased responsibilities	3.89	1.03
Average on access to opportunity	3.88	0.99

Source: Research Data (2018)

According to table 4.8, the respondents agreed that their positions allowed for career growth and development as exhibited by an average of 3.94. The respondents also agreed that their jobs offer them opportunities to participate in interesting projects and opportunities for increased responsibilities as exhibited by an average of 3.89. The respondents also agreed that they have a chance to grow and to be promoted within the university as shown by a mean of 3.82. The grand mean was 3.88 with a standard deviation of 0.99. This implies that JKUAT provides access to various opportunities within the organization to enhance their careers. This also shows that JKUAT is doing a good job in ensuring that its employees rise up the ranks of academia.

# **4.4 Organizational Commitment**

#### **4.4.1 Affective Commitment**

The researcher sought to demonstrate the extent of affective commitment exhibited by the respondents.

**Table 4.9 Affective Commitment** 

Statements	Mean	Std.
		Deviation
I would be very happy to spend the rest of my career with this	3.57	1.10
university		
I plan to work at my present job for as long as possible	3.68	1.02
This university has a great deal of personal meaning for me	3.71	1.11
I feel as if the university's problems are my own	3.14	1.22
I feel emotionally attached to this university	3.42	1.26
Average on affective commitment	3.50	1.14

Source: Research Data (2018)

According to table 4.9 above, the respondents agreed that the university meant a lot to them on a personal level as shown by the mean of 3.71. The respondents also agreed that they planned to work at their present jobs for as long as possible as shown by the mean of 3.68. They agreed that they would more than happy to stay within JKUAT for the remaining part of their careers as shown by the mean of 3.57. The respondents agreed that they felt emotionally attached to the university as shown by a mean of 3.42. The respondents were neutral on the fact that they feel that the university's problems are their own as shown by a mean of 3.14. The average mean was 3.50 and an average standard deviation of 1.14. This is to say that most of the academic staff at JKUAT have an affection for their work and are affectively committed to their jobs within the university.

The respondents would be satisfied to spend the rest of their careers at JKUAT meaning the university holds great meaning and significance for the respondents. However some do not own the institution's issues as if they were theirs neither do they feel emotionally attached to the university.

## **4.4.2** Continuance commitment

The results of the findings on continuance commitment were analysed through means scores and presented in table 4.10 below.

**Table 4. 10 Continuance Commitment** 

Statements	Mean	Std.
		Deviation
It would be very hard for me to leave this university right now	2.92	1.15
even if I wanted to		
I feel I feel like I don't have enough options to consider leaving	2.27	0.99
this university		
Had I not put so much of myself into this university, I would have	2.68	1.00
considered working elsewhere.		
Average on continuance commitment	2.62	1.05

Source: Research Data (2018)

According to table 4.10, the respondents were neutral that it would be very hard for them to leave the university as shown by a mean of 2.92. The respondents were neutral that if they had not put so much of themselves into the university, they would have considered working elsewhere as shown by a mean of 2.68. The respondents disagreed that they felt that they did not have enough options to consider leaving the university as shown by a

mean of 2.27. The average mean of continuance commitment was 2.62 with a standard deviation of 1.05. This implies that the respondents were neutral on whether they exhibited continuance commitment. This commitment is not desirable especially from the organization's perspective because employees stay committed to an organization due to a lack of alternative and how much they feel they have invested into the organization. This kind of commitment does not lead to increased productivity within the university.

#### **4.4.3 Normative Commitment**

The results of the findings on the extent of normative commitment were summarized in table 4.11 below.

**Table 4. 11 Normative commitment** 

	Mean	Std.
		Deviation
I would not leave this university right now because I have an	3.00	1.11
obligation to the people in it		
This university deserves my loyalty	3.43	1.15
I feel an obligation to remain with my current employer	3.03	1.13
Average on normative commitment	3.15	1.13

Source: Research Data (2018)

According to table 4.11, the respondents were agreed that the university deserves their loyalty as shown by a mean of 3.43. The respondents were neutral that they felt an obligation to remain with their current employer as show by a mean of 3.03 and neutral on the statement that they would not leave the university at that time because they have an obligation to the people in it as shown by a mean of 3.00. The average mean was 3.15 and the average standard deviation was 1.13. This indicates neutrality of the respondents

when it comes to normative commitment. This is a good sign because normative commitment only occurs out of obligation to stay with an organization and not out of genuine love for ones job. The statistics of continuance commitment and normative commitment are both similar meaning that the respondents more or less exhibit the same levels of these two dimensions of commitment.

# 4.5 Regression Analysis

A regression analysis on employee commitment (dependent variable) versus employee empowerment (independent variable) was performed. The output of the regression equation that had been provided is as follows:

Table 4. 12: Model Summary

Mode	R	R Square	Adjusted R	Std. Error of the Estimate
1			Square	
1	.913ª	.833	.828	.27654

a. Predictors: (Constant), access to opportunity, access to information, access to resources, perceived support

Source: Research Data (2018)

From the table above, there was an averagely strong relationship between the two variables as shown by .913 which is the correlation coefficient. R squared is the coefficient of determination which tells us the variation in the dependent variable due to changes in the independent variable. Form the findings in table 4.12, the value of the R

squared was .828, an indication that there was variation of 82.8% in employee commitment due to perceived support, access to information, access to resources and access to opportunities.

**Table 4. 13 Analysis of Variance** 

Model		Sum of	df	Mean	F	Sig.
		Squares		Square		
	Regression	47.643	4	11.911	155.750	.000 <sup>b</sup>
1	Residual	9.559	125	.076		
	Total	57.202	129			

a. Dependent Variable: Organizational Commitment

b. Predictors: (Constant), Access to Opportunity, Access to Information, Access to Resources, Perceived Support

Source: Research Data (2018)

From the ANOVA statistics, the processed data which is the population parameters had a significance level of 0.00 which shows that the data is ideal for making conclusions on the population's parameter as the value of significance (P- value) is less than 0.5.

Table 4. 14: Coefficients<sup>a</sup>

Model		Unstandardized		Standardized	T	Sig.
		Coe	fficients	Coefficients		
		В	Std. Error	Beta		
	(Constant)	.696	.122		5.725	.000
	Perceived	.205	.029	.327	7.021	.000
	Support	.203	.02)	.521	7.021	.000
	Access to	.155	.026	.246	6.013	.000
1	Information	.133	.020	.240	0.013	.000
	Access to	.209	.027	.352	7.885	.000
	Resources	.20)	.027	.552	7.005	.000
	Access to	.203	.033	.279	6.116	.000
	Opportunity	.203	.033	.217	0.110	.000

a. Dependent Variable: Employee Commitment

Source: Research Data (2018)

From the data in the above table, the established regression was

#### $Y=0.696+0.205X_1+0.155X_2+0.209X_3+0.203X_4$

From the above regression equation, it was revealed that holding perceived support, access to information, access to resources and access to opportunity to a constant of zero, commitment would be 0.696. This means a unit in increase in perceived support would lead to an increase in commitment by a factor of 0.205, a unit increase in access to information would lead to an increase in commitment by a factor of 0.155, a unit increase in access to resources would lead to an increase in commitment by a factor of 0.209 and a unit increase in access to opportunity would lead to an increase in commitment by a

factor of 0.203. All variables were significant as their significant value was less than (p < 0.5). From the study findings, empowering employees by providing access to resources contributed the most to employee commitment. However, there wasn't much of a significant difference between the four variables.

## **4.6 Discussion of Findings**

When it comes to the various aspects of empowerment, the employees agreed that there is indeed perceived support in the university and that the university supports their work endeavors to make the teaching process as easy as possible for the teaching staff. This perceived support has proved to be a contributing factor to employee commitment. This finding concurs with Burke et al. (1997) who found that indeed employees who feel supported by their supervisors, their peers and their subordinates become more committed to the organization. When it comes to the second variable which is access to information, the employees agree that the university provides them with adequate access to the relevant information that they need to carry out their tasks, information on what is going on in the university and information that is relevant and timely which empowers the employee. This is in line with Xiaohui (2007) who said that having access to information provides employees with a sense of power. The employees were neutral on the fact that they have adequate resources to carry out their jobs efficiently. This shows that they are not content with the amount of resources that they receive and they would like to receive more resources from the organization. The employees therefore need more financial resources and also more time to accomplish their tasks. Kanter (1993) concurs with this and he says that a lack of access to resources leads to reduced employee commitment. The employees agreed that they have access to opportunities for career growth and development and to climb the organizational ladder. They concur that they indeed participate in interesting projects and have increased responsibilities within their job descriptions.

Moreover, the respondents largely indicated that they were affectively committed to the university meaning that their loyalty to the university is rooted on factors beyond monetary compensation and the university means a great deal to them. These findings are in line with the suggestions of Meyer and Allen (1991) who claim that if an employee is affectively committed to his organization the employee feels a great emotional attachment to the job that is independent of the income he receives. This shows that the members of the teaching staff exhibit high levels of commitment which eventually translate to performance and also the rate of employee turnover. This proves that indeed employee empowerment within any given organization will lead to increased employee commitment. This goes hand in hand with the findings of Hanasha (2016) who found that employee empowerment indeed had a significant positive impact on organizational commitment.

**CHAPTER FIVE: SUMMARY, CONCLUSION AND** 

RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1 Introduction

This chapter gives the summary of findings and conclusions of the study. The chapter

also presents recommendations and suggestions for further research in future.

5.2 Summary of the Findings

The objective of the study was to determine the influence of employee empowerment on

employee commitment among academic staff in JKUAT. Questionnaires were used to

collect information in the university whose population of academic staff is 162. From this

population, 130 respondents filled and returned the questionnaires. Of the 130 employees

who responded, 108 of these were male employees and only 22 of these were female

employees.

Employee empowerment was broken down into four dimensions namely perceived

support, access to information, access to resources and access to opportunity. When it

comes to perceived support the study found that the employees agreed that they received

support from the university that is support from both their fellow colleagues and their

supervisors. The study revealed that indeed the academic staff at JKUAT value the work

of their peers. However, the university does not adequately recognize the achievements

and successes of its staff and the job flexibility is somewhat inadequate.

42

The study also revealed that the employees are not satisfied with the time they are given by their organization to accomplish various tasks. The university also does not adequately allow the staff to acquire the materials they need. The study also revealed that the employees have adequate opportunities for career growth and development. The employees feel that they have been provided with adequate promotion opportunities and that their jobs do offer them opportunities to participate in interesting projects in the work place.

Employee commitment was also broken down into three different dimensions that is affective commitment, continuance commitment and normative commitment. It was revealed the academic staff in JKUAT have an innate affection for their jobs within the organization that has nothing to do with the amount of money that they earn. They genuinely feel that the university means a great deal to them. However, some do not assume personal ownership of the university and its problems neither do they feel a sense of emotional attachment to the organization. Moreover, the employees within the university feel that if they wanted to leave their organization they would freely do so without hesitation. The study showed that when it comes to normative commitment the employees are neutral. This implies that the respondents do not stay with the university out of obligation or loyalty to the organization. All in all it is clear that the employees in the university work there for the right reasons and they have the right incentives to stay.

Regression analysis was executed on the data and it basically concluded that holding perceived support, access to information, access to resources and access to opportunity to a constant of zero, commitment would be 0.696. It also revealed that providing access to resources to the employees contributed the most to employee commitment even though

the difference between the four variables wasn't that significant. All the variables emerged significant as they were all less than 0.5. Indeed there is a positive relationship between employee empowerment and commitment.

#### **5.3 Conclusion**

According to the findings of this study, empowering employees through offering support, giving them access to information, giving them access to resources and giving them access to opportunity helps to improve employee commitment. The relationship between perceived support and employee commitment was found to be positive meaning employees are committed to the organizations when they perceive to have the support of the organization, their fellow colleagues and the support of their supervisors. There was also a positive relationship between access to opportunity and organizational commitment indicating that employees at JKUAT are committed to the university when they are provided with opportunities for career growth, opportunities for promotion and also opportunities to carry out any occurring projects. Access to information also has a positive relationship with employee commitment leading to the conclusion that these employees within the university are committed to their organizations when they are provided with information on what is going on in the university and they are provided with information on a relevant and timely manner. The study also found that the members of the teaching staff in JKUAT are not provided with enough resources to carry out their work efficiently. They don't feel like they get sufficient resources to carry out their jobs, and also they would like more time to be able to accomplish their tasks.

The study also concludes that the employees in within the university are actually happy with their jobs and would not mind staying within these positions for the remaining part of their careers. These employees have an emotional attachment to the institution and they plan to remain with the university for the as long as possible. Due to the level of empowerment provided at JKUAT, the employees do not exhibit continuance commitment to a large extent. They do not feel obliged to stay with the organization due to a lack of options nor do they feel like they would happily leave the university had they not invested so much of themselves in the university.

#### **5.4 Recommendations**

The study recommends that employee achievements and success should be recognized by the university as some of the employees did not feel satisfied by the extent to which this is carried out. The supervisors should also be more flexible and should be willing to re arrange the work days of the employees in order to increase efficiency on and off the job. When it comes to access to information, the study found that the employees do not feel that they receive information that is not only adequate and precise but prompt. Therefore the university should create better communication channels with its employees so that the employees are always informed on new developments within the university.

Universities and other organizations should offer employees opportunities for career growth and development and they should also carry out internal recruitment and promote the employee within the organization. The people in charge of running the university should also communicate the objectives of the organization in a timely manner and should offer clarity on each individual's roles and personal objectives. Also the employees are quite dissatisfied by the resources they receive. The university should

therefore increase the resources it provides to its employees to enhance efficiency on the job. The employees should also be given lee way to bring in the materials that they need to carry out their jobs efficiently.

The employees are partially satisfied with their chances for career growth and promotion opportunities. However the university should make the promotion process much easier by completely eliminating the politics involved in the promotion processes. The promotion of members of the teaching staff should be based purely on merit. The university should also offer more numerous opportunities to the employees to participate in interesting projects that are unique and have never been done before and also provide opportunities for increased responsibilities to the employees.

The employees are affectively committed to the university however the university should put more effort to make the employees feel as if the university's problems are theirs. This would be done by promoting ownership of the university by the employees and ensuring that the employees participate in important decision making. The university should also strive to ensure that the employees are attached to the organization on an emotional level. Moreover, the university should strive to reduce the levels of normative commitment exhibited by the employees which is not the ideal type of commitment an organization would desire. Employees should be committed because they want to be loyal to the university without any external motivating factors.

The university should come up with a reward system whereby employees' achievements and successes are rewarded so as to motivate the employees towards higher levels of commitment. The university should also come up with methods and ways to enhance

team work within the university so as to form strong bonds among the employees which will eventually lead to support among them. The supervisors within the university should also allow the members of the teaching staff themselves to make their own decisions regarding pertinent issues and should give them autonomy to make these decisions on their own, and hence face the consequences of their actions. Autonomy will then lead to the employees being more confident in their decisions.

## 5.5 Limitations of the Study

This research had a couple of impediments despite the successful achievement of its objective. One of these impediments was that the study outcomes are not be applicable globally and this study may only be limited to public universities in Kenya.

Another limitation came during collecting of data. The respondents who are teaching staff have varied schedules and it was difficult to find some of them to fill in the questionnaire. This resulted in the data collection process taking longer than it should have ideally and also resulted in some of the questionnaires not being filled. The researcher however made several visits to the university until many of the questionnaires were filled.

Also, the respondents did not want to give information about the university and its intricacies as they considered this kind of information to be private and confidential. However the researcher assured them of the utmost discretion while handling the information in the questionnaire. This information would only be used for the purposes of this study.

# **5.6 Suggestions for Further Research**

This study is limited in that it only focused on JKUAT as it is the only public university in Kiambu County. Further research should be carried out and should examine the influence of employee empowerment on employee commitment in other universities and parastatals in general.

## REFERENCES

- Bakari, T. (2008). Relationship between employee empowerment and performance of the city council of Nairobi. *Problems of management in the 21<sup>st</sup> century*, 83-98.
- Becker, S. (1960). Notes on the concept of commitment. *American Journal of Sociology*, 66: 32-40.
- Blau, M. (1964). Exchange of power in social life. NY: John Wiley & Sons.
- Burke, J., & Elkot, G. (2010). Work engagement among managers and professionals in Egypt. *African Journal of Economic and Management Studies*, *1*(1), 42-60.
- Carriere, J., & Bourque, C. (2009). The effects of organizational communication on job satisfaction and organizational commitment in a land ambulance service and the mediating role of communication satisfaction. *Career Development International*, 14(1), 29-49. doi:10.1108/136204309109335565
- Chen, G., Kirkman, L., Kanfer, R., Allen, D., & Rosen, B. (2007). A multilevel study of leadership, empowerment and performance in teams. *Journal of Applied Psychology*, 331-346. Doi:10.1037/0021-9010.92.2.331
- Coetzee, M. (2005). The fairness of affirmative action: An organisational justice perspective. PhD Thesis, University of Pretoria. *Journal of Business and Management Sciences*, 3(5),138-147. doi:10.12691/jbms-3-5-1
- Decotii, T. & Summers, T. (1987). A path analysis of a model of the antecedents and consequences of organizational commitment. *American Journal of Industrial and Business Management*, 40, 445-470. doi: 10.4236/ajibm.2015.511067
- Dordevic, B. (2004). Employee commitment in times of radical organizational changes. Economics and Organization,2(2), 111-117.
- Elnaga, A. & Imran, A. (2014). The impact of employee empowerment on job satisfaction. *American Journal of Research Communication*, 2(1), 13-26.
- Foote, W. (1943). Street corner society. University of Chicago Press.
- Gholami, Z., Soltanahmadi, J. Pashavi, G., & Nekouei S. (2013). Empowerment as a basic step in upgrading organizational commitment and organizational citizenship behaviours: A case study on public sector in Iran. *World of Applied Science Journal*, 21(11), 1698-1698

- Grimsley, S. (2018). Employee empowerment: Definition, Advantages & Disadvantages.

  Retrieved from https://study.com/academy/lesson/employee-empowerment-definition-advantages-disadvantages.html
- Hall, D., Schneider, B., &Nygren, H. (1970). Personal factors in organizational identification. *Administrative Science Quarterly*, 15(2). doi:10.2307/23911488
- Hanaysha, J. (2016). Examining the effects of employee empowerment, teamwork and employee training on organizational commitment. *Social and Behavioral Sciences*, 229(2016), 298-306
- Harris, I., Moritzen, K., Robitschek, C., Imhoff, A., & Lynch, A. (2001). The comparative contribution of congruence and social support in career outcomes. *Career Development Quarterly*, 49:314-323
- Homans, G. (1950). Social behaviour as exchange. *American Journal of Sociology*, 63(6), 597-606.
- Iles, P. et al (1990) HRM Practices and Employee Commitment: Possibilities, Pitfalls and Paradoxes. *British Journal of Management, Vol. 1,* 147-157
- Imuezerua, E., & Chinomona, E. (2016). The influence of employee empowerment, ethical climate, organizational support and top management commitment on employee job satisfaction. A case of companies in the Gauteng province of South Africa. *The Journal of Applied Business Research*, 33(1). doi: 10.19030
- Janssen, O. (2004). The barrier effect of conflict with superiors in the relationship between employee empowerment and organizational commitment. *Work and Stress*, 18(1), 55-65.
- JKUAT. (2018). Retrieved from http://www.jkuat.ac.ke/core-values-philosophy/
- Jons, R. (2005). Determinants of organizational commitment among U.S. workers. Unpublished master's thesis, Duquesne University.
- Kahlel, A., Gaither A. (2005). Effects of empowerment on pharmacists organizational behaviours. *Research and Social and Administrative Pharmacy*, 3(2), 199-222. doi:10.1016
- Kanter, R. M. (1993). Men and women of the corporation (2nd Ed.). New York: Basic Books.
- Kanter, R. (1997). Frontiers of management. Harvard Business School Press

- Kiambati, K.,& Kariuki, A. (2017). Empowerment, organizational commitment, organizational citizenship behaviour and firm performance. *Management Studies*, 5(4), 290-300. doi:10.17265/2328-2185/2017.04.003
- Kiboye, O. (2007). Reconstructing the university academic tenure system in Kenya. Position Paper to the Task Force reviewing the University Act.
- Kimolo, K. (2013). The relationship between employee empowerment practices and employee performance in regional development authorities in Kenya. *unpublished MBA project*, Nairobi, Kenya.
- Kirui, L. (2011). The influence of employee empowerment on implementation of ISO standards: A case of university of Nairobi, Kenya. *Unpublished Masters Project*.
- Krishna, R. (2007). Psychological empowerment and organizational commitment. *The Icfa Journal of Organizational Behaviour*, *6*(4), 26-36.
- Kumar, V. (2014). Equality in the workplace: A study of gender issues in Indian Organizations. *Journal of Management Development*, 33(2).
- Levine, R. & Kim, S. (2010). Social exchange, uncertainty and communication content as factors impacting the relational outcomes of betrayal. *Human Communication*, 13, 303-318.
- Lockwood, R. (2007). Leveraging employee engagement for competitive advantage: HR's strategic role. *HR magazine*, 52(3).
- Maina, M. (2017). Influence of employee empowerment on organizational commitment in Kenya Civil Service. *Strategic Journals*, 1(6), 133-146.
- Menon, T. (2001). Employee empowerment. An integrative psychological approach. *Applied Psychology, 50*(1), 153-180.
- Meyer & Allen. (1997). Commitment in the workplace: Theory, Research and Application.
- Meyerson, G. (2012). Effect of empowerment on employees performance. *Advanced Research in Economic and Management Sciences*, 2, 2322-2360.
- Mowday, T., Porter, W., Steers, M. (1982). Employee organization linkages.: The psychology of commitment, absenteeism and turnover. New York: Academic Press.

- Mutiso, G. (2017). Effect of employee empowerment on job satisfaction at Machakos level five hospital in Kenya. *Unpublished MBA Project*, Nairobi, Kenya.
- Ng'ang'a, S. & Moronge, M. (2017). Influence of empowerment on employee performance in the public service in kenya: A case of Kenya wildlife service. *The Strategic Journal of Business and Change Management*, 2(39), 676-704.
- Okoth, K.(2007). Reconstructing the university academic tenure system in Kenya. Position Paper to the Task Force Reviewing the Universities Act.
- Park, S., & Rainey, H. (2007). Antecedents, mediators, and consequences of affective, normative, and continuance commitment: Empirical tests of commitment effects in federal agencies. *Review of Public Personnel Administration*, 27(3).
- Ramesh, R., Kumar, S. (2014). Role of employee empowerment in organizational development. *International Academic Journal of Organizational Behaviour and Human Resource Management*, 3(5), 9-16.
- Ramos, A. & Ales, Y. (2014). Empowering employees: Structural empowerment as antecedent of satisfaction in University settings. *Psychological Thought*, 7(1), 28-36. doi: 10.5964
- Randal, M. (1990). The consequences of organizational commitment: Methodological investigation. *Journal of Organizational Behaviour*, 11(5), 361-378.
- Raquib, A. (2010). Empowerment practices and performance in Malaysia: An empirical study. *International Journal of Business Management*, 5(1),
- Raza, H., Mahmood, J., Owais, M., (2015) impact of employee empowerment on job satisfaction of employees in corporate banking sector of employees of Pakistan. *Journal of Applied Environmental and Biological Sciences*, 5(2), 1-7.
- Rusbult, C.E. and Farrell, D. (1983). A longitudinal test of the investment model: The impact of job satisfaction, job commitment and turnover variations in rewards, costs, alternatives and investments. *Journal of Applied Psychology*, 69, 429-438.
- Sahoo, C., Behera, N., & Tripathy, K. (2010). Employee empowerment and individual commitment: an analysis from integrative review of research. *Employee Relations Record*, 10(1), 40-56.
- Saleh, A. (2013). Psychological empowerment and job satisfaction. *International Journal of Academic Research in Business and Social Sciences*. *6*(2), 2222-6990.

- Schmidt, K., Rivkin, W., & Diestel, S. (2015). Affective commitment as a moderator of the adverse relationships between day-specific self-control demands and psychological well being. *Journal of Vocational Behaviour*, 88, 185-194.
- Shore, M., Barksdale, K. & Shore, H. (1995). Managerial perceptions of employee commitment to the organization. *Academy of Management Journal*, *38*, 1595-1616.
- Solinger, N. (2008). Beyond the three component model of organizational commitment. *Journal of applied psychology*, *93*, 70-83.
- Thibaut, W. & Kelley, H. (1969). The social psychology of groups. NY: John Wiley & Sons.
- Too, J., Mukhwana, E., Oure, S., Kiptoo, S., Kande, A., Njue, R, &Some, K. (2016) State of University Education in Kenya. Nairobi, Kenya.
- Vacharakiat, M. (2008). The relationships of empowerment, job satisfaction, and organizational commitment among Filipino and American registered nurses working in the USA. Unpublished doctoral thesis, University of George, Mason.
- Vorya, J., Mohamad, A. (2013). An examination of the relationship between empowerment and organizational commitment: A case study Kurdistan province electric staff. *Interdisciplinary journal of contemporary research in business*, 4(12).
- Werf, R. (2016). 3 key types of organizational commitment. Retrieved from <a href="https://www.effectory.com/knowledge/blog/3-key-types-of-organisational-commitment/">https://www.effectory.com/knowledge/blog/3-key-types-of-organisational-commitment/</a>
- Wong, S. (2011). Employee empowerment, job satisfaction and organizational commitment: An in-depth empirical investigation. *Chinese Management Studies*, 5(3), 325-344. doi:10.1108/17506141111163390.
- Xiaohui, W. (2007). Learning job satisfaction and commitment: An empirical study of organizations in China. *Chinese Management Studies*, 1(3), 167-179.

**APPENDIX 1: RESEARCH QUESTIONNAIRE** 

Ruth Wangui Njoroge

University of Nairobi

P.O. Box 1775-00232

Ruiru, Kenya.

Dear interviewee,

This questionnaire is designed to gather information on the influence of employee

empowerment on employee commitment among the academic staff at Jomo Kenyatta

University of Agriculture and Technology (JKUAT). If there are any issues that require

clarification, kindly get in touch with the researcher, Ms. Ruth Wangui, through the

contacts given below

1. Email: ruthyqui7@gmail.com

Or

2. Cell phone: 0705878589

The study is being carried out as a requirement in partial fulfillment of the degree of

Master of Science (Msc.) in Human Resource Management at the school of business,

University of Nairobi. Your answers will be treated with all the confidentiality deserved

and will not be divulged to any other user.

Your cooperation will be highly appreciated

Yours Sincerely,

**RUTH WANGUI NJOROGE** 

**MSC STUDENT** 

54

Please fill in the following questionnaire by answering all the questions given as instructed. All information will be treated in high confidence and shall be used for research purposes only. Please do not indicate your name anywhere in the questionnaire.

## **Section A: Respondents profile**

## Personal data (tick appropriately)

1.	Wh	nat is your gender?	
	a.	Male	[ ]
	b.	Female	[]
2.	Wh	at age bracket are	ou within?
	a.	Below 30 years [	b. 30 to 38 years [ ] c. 39 to 47 years [ ]
	d. 4	18 to 56 years [ ] 6	57 to 65 years [ ]f. Above 65 years [ ]
3.	Wh	nat academic teachi	g level do you belong to?
a.	Pro	ofessor [ ] b. Se	nior lecturer [ ] c. Lecturer [ ]
	d.	Assistant lecturer	] e. Graduate assistant [ ]
4.	Wh	at faculty do you v	ork for?
5.	Но	w many years have	you worked for the university?
a.	1-5	years [ ] b. 5-1	) years [ ] c. 10-15 years [ ]
d.	15-2	0 years [ ] e. M	ore than 20 years [ ]

#### SECTION B. EMPLOYEE EMPOWERMENT

State the extent to which you agree or disagree with the statements in the table.

Use the key provided below.

- 1. Strongly disagree
- 2. Disagree
- 3. Neutral
- 4. Agree
- 5. Strongly agree

#	Statement		2	3	4	5
	Perceived support					
1	My achievements and successes are recognized by the university					
2	My coworkers value my contribution and care about my well being					
3	My supervisor is willing to re arrange my work days so as to					
	increase my effectiveness on and off the job					]
	Access to information					
4	I am always informed of what is going on in the university					
5	I know what I should do, how I should do it and why I should do it					
	in line with the university's goals					]
6	The information I receive is relevant and timely					
	Access to resources					
7	I normally get sufficient resources to do my job					
8	I am given ample time by the organization to accomplish my tasks					1
9	I have influence to bring in the materials I need to carry out my job					
	Access to opportunity					1
10	My position allows for career growth and development					1
11	I have a chance to grow and be promoted within the university					1
12	My job offers me opportunities to participate in interesting projects					
	and opportunities for increased responsibilities					

# SECTION C. ORGANIZATIONAL COMMITMENT

#	Statement	1	2	3	4	5
	Affective commitment					
1	I would be very happy to spend the rest of my career with this university					
2	I plan to work at my present job for as long as possible					
3	This university has a great deal of personal meaning for me					

4	I feel as if the university's problems are my own						
5	I feel emotionally attached to this university						
	Continuance commitment						
6	It would be very hard for me to leave this university right now						
	even if I wanted to						
7	I feel I feel like I don't have enough options to consider leaving						
	this university						
8	Had I not put so much of myself into this university, I would have						
	considered working elsewhere.						
	Normative commitment						
9	I would not leave this university right now because I have an						
	obligation to the people in it						
10	This university deserves my loyalty						
11	I feel an obligation to remain with my current employer						

THE END